


The Synagogue in Vöhl (Germany) 



Vöhl 

Vöhl is a village in the state of Hessen, Germany, 35 miles west of Kassel 



The first mention of a Vöhler Jew is dated 

1682 : 60 pounds of iron for building 

work on the Marienhagener church were 

bought from him, “from which nails for 

walls and beams were made”. The 

document refers to him as the “Jew of 

Voehle”. 

A housing list dated 1705 identifies 8 Jews as house and property 

owners. Based on family sizes of the time, that could mean 50 to 

60 Jewish people lived in the town. It is probable that religious 

ceremonies in Vöhl at that time took place in private homes..  

The  synagogue is first mentioned in 1827. Previous plans or  

documents are unknown. 



Synagogue 

The synagogue is situated in Mittelgasse 9 



On 17. July 1827 the building  was completed – initially as a school. 

The dedication as a synagogue took place on Friday, 18. August 1829. 



The simple exterior of the timber-framed building, 

 does not suggest that a synagogue is housed within. 



Only the inscription on a beam indicates that it was 

built as a “Sinego”. 



And, scarcely visible from the street, is the copy 

of the original round window and the Star of David. 



The smoked windows also suggest that the building 

serves a particular function.  



“In the year 1827 on 17. July this Sinego was happily completed with 

the help and strength of the Master Carpenters Hillemann from 

Kirchlotheim and Heinrich Lai together with apprentices. 

 God bless this building and all, that go in and out” 

The complete inscription on the beams reads: 



A pergament 

commemorative 

plaque  

in honour of 

Ludwig, 

the first Grand 

Duke 

of Hessen, was 

installed inside 

the synagogue. 

(Photo: Ernst 

Davidsohn, 

early 1930‘s) 



Between 1829 and 1938 the  Jewish congregation of Vöhl, 

Marienhagen and Basdorf conducted religious services here. 



The Ark was situated before the south-east wall. 

(Photo: Ernst Davidsohn, early 1930‘s) 



The Vöhler Ark was reached 

by ascending two or three steps 

which had a wooden banister 

on both sides. 



Above the carved vine 

ornamentation a candle 

shaped light bulb was 

held in a wooden carved 

hand. 



Embroidered on the 

deep red velvet curtains 

of the Vöhler 

synagogue 

were the two tablets 

containing the 10 

Commandments. 



The Ark was white. The triangular roof framed 

a 9-pointed bow-shaped form on the dark background. 



The impressive seven-armed chandelier was sold as late as the 

seventies. All that remains is the hook upon which it was hung. 



One of the smaller chandeliers can, however, be seen 

on the old photo taken by Ernst Davidsohn. 



From a balcony running around the whole building 

the women were able to watch the service taking place. 



Their seats were numbered. 



In the 19. century the women  

were probably protected from 

being seen by a wooden panel. 

Such a panel was found in the 

attic. 



Particularly impressive is the dome-shaped ceiling, 

reminiscent of the sky above.  It is painted light blue 

with over 300 golden stars, and the sun in the centre. 



The other rooms in the building were living quarters except this one 

which could be heated and probably served as a winter synagogue. 
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Around 1850 20% of the 600 Vöhler citizens were of Jewish 

 faith (houses marked in map by Jürgen Evers). 

Synagogue 



Nearly 100 Jews belonged to the community in Vöhl in 1899. 

They were well integrated, as seen here in the men‘s choir group. 



The choir group still had Jewish members in 1931 although 

meanwhile only 50 Jews lived in Vöhl. 



„Oh Lord, let Moses come again, that 

he may lead his brothers and sisters 

home to the promised Land. 

Let the seas again divide so that the 

high walls of water stand like two 

mighty cliffs. 

And when all the Jews are there collected 

Oh Lord, let the water fall so that all other  

nations have peace at last!“ 

 

On the poster left: Palastine 4500 km 

1933 onwards: 

aggression against Jews in neigh- 

bouring villages: Puppet figures 

and a poster in Thalitter: 



More than 40 people, 

however, were murdered 

in concentration camps or 

went missing. 

Several of the Jewish citizens 

were able to emigrate to the 

USA or Argentina in time to 

escape persecution. 

The last to remain in the 

village were four old women. 

They were deported in 1942 

and died in various camps. 



In September 2000 the „Förderkreis  

„Synagoge in Vöhl“ e.V invited 13 exiled Vöhler Jews 

and their close relatives to visit their old home. 
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Amongst them: 

Jewish genealogist 

Carol Davidson Baird, 

who has taken a key role 

in the restoration of the 

synagogue in Vöhl.  

Her grandparents were 

married in the Vöhl 

synagogue, where she and 

her husband renewed their 

own wedding vows at the 

site some 80 years later. 
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The last Jewish inhabitants of the building 

emigrated to the USA in March 1938  



A company sign of the last owner was found in the attic. 



Because the building had 

recently been sold and it 

stood close to neighbouring 

buildings it survived the 

infamous „Reichskristall-

nacht“ on 9. Nov. 1938. The 

village children did their 

target practice on the 

chandeliers but otherwise 

serious damage was not 

done. The ceremonial 

artifacts such as the Torah 

scrolls etc. were probably 

taken away by the SA 

and/or SS to be destroyed in 

Kassel.  



The round window and the 

Star of David were 

destroyed and bricked up. 

In January 2001 the Förderkreis 

„Synagoge in Vöhl“ e.V. 

was able to replace it. 



From 1938 onwards several families lived in the rooms of the 

building. The sanctuary of the synagogue was used as a 

storage room for building materials and for drying washing. 
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In 1999 the last inhabitant of the house died and on 9. November 

the Förderkreis „Synagoge in Vöhl“ e.V was founded 

and purchased the building. 

Waldeckische Landeszeitung 11.11.1999 



Only a  toilette had 

been installed in the 

seventies. 

We were all surprised 

and overwhelmed that 

the synagogue, proper, 

had remained almost  

unchanged since 1938 . 



The outline of the Ark, 

formerly housing the 

Torah scrolls is easily 

recognizable. 



Ceiling and balcony are  

surprisingly well preserved. 
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Over 4000 visitors have visited the building in the last 2 years. 

Intended is a memorial and cultural centre. 



15 successful concerts with Jewish music, awards and donations 

provide us with hope, that our great ambition, to restore the 

 synagogue in Vöhl and fill it with new life can and will be achieved! 
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Waldeckische Landeszeitung 31.12.1999 
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Frankenberger Zeitung 23.08.2000 



Waldeckische Landeszeitung 14.11.2000 
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Many thanks for your interest! 
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